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Audit Report on Financial Statements

Opinion
We conducted an audit of the financial statements of Limited Liability Company "GOFINGO",
EDRPOU (Unified State Registration Number of Enterprises and Organizations of Ukraine) code
42059219, located at 1A Khoryva Street, Kyiv, 04071 (hereinafter – the Company), which consist of
the balance sheet (Statement of financial position) as of December 31, 2020, Statement of financial
results (Statement of comprehensive income) for 2020, Statement of cash flows (using the direct
method) for 2020, Statement of equity for 2020, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the attached financial statements reflect reliably, in all essential aspects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2020, and its financial results and cash flows
for the year ended the specified date, according to the International Financial Reporting Standards
(hereinafter – the IFRS), and meet the requirements of the Law of Ukraine "On Accounting and
Financial Reporting in Ukraine" No. 996-XIV of July 16, 1999 regarding the preparation of financial
statements.
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Basis for opinion
We conducted the audit according to the International Auditing Standards (2016-2017 edition,
in particular, the International Auditing Standard 700 "Forming an Opinion and Reporting on
Financial Statements") (hereinafter – the IAS). Our responsibility under these standards is set out in
the Section "Auditor's responsibility for auditing financial statements" of our Report. We are
independent in relation to the Company according to the Code of Ethics of Professional Accountants
of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (hereinafter – IESBA Code) and the
ethical requirements applicable in Ukraine to our audit of financial statements and have also fulfilled
other ethics duties according to these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have received is sufficient and acceptable to use as a basis for our opinion.
Key audit issues
Key audit issues are the issues that, in our professional opinion, were most significant during
our audit of the financial statements for the current period. These issues were considered in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and when forming an opinion on them; however,
we do not express a separate opinion on these issues.
We have determined that the issues described below are key audit issues that should be reflected
in our Report.
Other information
The Company's management personnel is responsible for other information.
Other information received on the date of this Auditor's Report is information that is contained
in the annual reporting data that the Company forms according to the "Procedure for reporting by
financial companies, financial institutions – legal entities of public law, trust companies, as well as
legal entities – business entities that by their legal status are not financial institutions, but can provide
financial leasing services defined by laws and regulations of the State Financial Services or the
National Commission for the State Regulation of Financial Services Markets to provide financial
leasing services", approved by the Order of the National Commission for the State Regulation of
Financial Services Markets No. 3840 of September 26, 2017, consisting of:
• title page (Appendix 6);
• information on the volume and number of concluded and executed financial services
agreements (Appendix 7);
• certificates of concluded and executed loan agreements, including on the terms of a
financial loan (Appendix 12);
• information on the structure of fixed capital of the financial institution (Appendix 14);
• information on the assets of the financial institution (Appendix 15)’
• information on the big risks of the financial institution (Appendix 16).
Our opinion on the annual reporting data is contained in the independent report on providing
confidence in the annual reporting data of the financial company of Limited Liability Company
"GOFINGO" for 2020.
Our opinion on the annual reporting data is contained in the independent report on providing
confidence in the annual reporting LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY "GOFINGO" for 2020.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not apply to other information, and we do not
conclude with any degree of certainty about this other information.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, it is our responsibility to review other
information and at the same time consider whether there is a significant discrepancy between the
other information and the financial statements or our knowledge gained during the audit, or whether
this other information appears to contain significant distortion.
If based on our work on other information received prior to the date of the Auditor's Report, we
conclude that there is a significant distortion of this other information, we are obliged to report this
fact.
We did not find any significant misrepresentation of other information that should have been
included in the Report.
Responsibility of management personnel and board of directors for financial reporting
Management personnel (represented by the Company's Director) are responsible for the
preparation and reliable presentation of financial statements according to IFRS and for such an
internal control system that management personnel determine is necessary to ensure that the financial
statements do not contain significant distortions due to fraud or error.
When preparing financial statements, management personnel are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue operations on a continuous basis, disclosing, where applicable, issues
related to business continuity, and using continuity assumptions as the basis for accounting, except
when management personnel either plan to liquidate the Bank or terminate operations or have no
other real alternatives to this.
The board of directors (general meeting of members) is responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibility for auditing financial statements
Our goals are to obtain reasonable confidence that the financial statements as a whole do not
contain significant distortion due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's report containing our
opinion. Reasonable confidence is a high level of confidence, but it does not guarantee that an audit
conducted according to IAS will always reveal a significant distortion if it exists. Distortions may be
the result of fraud or error; they are considered significant if, individually or collectively, they are
reasonably expected to influence users' economic decisions made based on these financial statements.
When performing an audit according to IAS requirements, we use professional judgment and
professional scepticism throughout the audit task. In addition, we:
• identify and assess the risks of significant misstatement of financial statements due to fraud
or error, develop and execute audit procedures in response to these risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and acceptable to use as a basis for our opinion. The risk of non-identification of
significant misrepresentation as a result of fraud is higher than that of misrepresentation as a result of
an error, since fraud may include collusion, forgery, deliberate omission, incorrect statements, or
disregard for internal control measures;
• gain an understanding of internal control measures related to the audit to develop audit
procedures that are appropriate to the circumstances, and not to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the internal control system;
• assess the acceptability of the applied accounting policies and the validity of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management personnel;
• conclude that it is acceptable for management to use the continuity assumption as the basis
for accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, we conclude whether there is significant
uncertainty about events or conditions that would cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
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continue as a going concern. If we come to the conclusion that there is such significant uncertainty,
we should draw the auditor's attention in our Report to the relevant disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inappropriate, modify our opinion. Our findings are based on
the audit evidence obtained prior to the date of our Auditor's Report. However, future events or
conditions may force the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;
• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of financial statements, including
information disclosures, as well as the fact that the state of emergency shows the financial statements
of transactions and events that form the basis of its preparation, to achieve a true and fair view.
We inform the management, along with other issues, of the planned scope and time of the audit
and the significant audit results, including any significant deficiencies in internal control measures
identified by us during the audit.
We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have met the relevant ethical
requirements for independence and inform them of all relationships and other issues that could
reasonably be considered to affect our independence, as well as, where applicable, with appropriate
precautions.
From the list of all issues on which information was provided to the board of directors, we
identified those that were most significant during the audit of the financial statements of the current
period, that is, those that are key audit issues. We describe these issues in our Auditor's Report unless
a legislative or regulatory act prohibits the public disclosure of such an issue, or when, in extremely
exceptional circumstances, we determine that such an issue should not be covered in our Report, as
the negative consequences of such coverage may predictably outweigh its usefulness to the public
interest.
Report on the requirements of other legislative and regulatory acts
Information on compliance with the basic requirements of the licence conditions for carrying out
business activities for the provision of financial services
In the course of carrying out business activities, the Company as a whole adhered to the basic
requirements defined by the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine "On approval of
licensing conditions for carrying out business activities for the provision of financial services (except
for professional activities in the securities market)" No. 913 of December 7, 2016.
Requirements for the amount of equity as of December 31, 2020 (no less than UAH 5 million)
were completed.
The authorized capital of the Company was paid exclusively in cash and placed on the bank
accounts of commercial banks that are legal entities under the legislation of Ukraine. The amount of
the Company's authorized capital reflected in the financial statements corresponds to the data of the
Company's Charter.
Existence of a ban on attracting financial assets from individuals with an obligation to return them
subsequently
During 2020, the Company did not attract financial assets from individuals with an obligation
to return them later. The Company complies with the requirements regarding the prohibition of
attracting financial assets from individuals with an obligation to return them later, established by
paragraph 38 of Licence Terms No. 913, namely: "Economic activities for the provision of financial
services in terms of attracting financial assets from individuals with an obligation to return them later
can be carried out by credit unions only after obtaining the appropriate licence. Other financial
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institutions are prohibited from attracting financial assets from individuals with the obligation to
return them subsequently".
Internal control and internal audit
In the Company, the internal audit is regulated by the Regulations "On Internal Audit Service" and
"On Internal Audit System", which was approved by the Decision of the sole member of LLC
"GOFINGO" No. 21/09/18 dated September 21, 2018. The Company also has an operating risks
management system which is aimed at ensuring the activities efficiency, organizing and coordinating
the actions aimed at ensuring the safety of assets, checking the reliability of accounting information,
improving the efficiency of accounting operations.

Basic information about the auditor
Full name: Limited Liability Company "Auditing Company "Olesya";
Legal entity identification code: 22930490;
Location: 13 Vasylkivska str., app., 403040, Kyiv.
Registration number in the Register of Auditors and Audit Entities, Section "Audit Entities"
No. 4423;
Registration number in the Register of Auditors and Audit Entities, Section "Audit entities entitled to
conduct a mandatory audit of financial statements" No. 4423;
Registration number in the Register of Auditors and Audit Entities, Section "Audit entities that have
the right to conduct a mandatory audit of the financial statements of enterprises of public interest"
No. 4423.
Auditors who participated in the audit:
Tiahun Nataliia Hryhorivna – Auditor's Certificate No. 006372, issued by the Resolution of the Audit
Chamber of Ukraine No. 185/3 of December 13, 2007. Registration number in the Register of
Auditors and Audit Entities, Section "Auditors" No. 100294.
Basic information about the terms and conditions of the audit agreement
Date and number of the audit agreement: Agreement No. 214 of December 21, 2020;
Audit start date: December 21, 2020;
Audit end date: April 12, 2021

Key audit partner,
Auditor "AC "Olesya" LLC
Certificate No. 006372

/signature/

N.H. Tiahun

/Round seal: Ukraine, Kyiv, Limited Liability Company
"Auditing Company "Olesya", Identification code 22930490/
Date of Auditor's Report: April 12, 2021
Kyiv
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Appendix 1
to the Accounting National Regulation (Standard) 1
“General Requirements to Financial Statements”
/Stamp: DOCUMENT ACCEPTED/

Company LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY "GOFINGO"
Territory Podilskyi district in Kyiv
Organizational and legal form of entity
Limited Liability Company
Type of economic activity
Other types of credit granting
Average number of employees1 54
Address, telephone 1A KHORYVA Street, KYIV, 04071
Unit: UAH thousand without decimal point (except for Section IV of the Profit and Loss Report
(Comprehensive Income Report) (Form No. 2), monetary indicators are specified in UAH with kopecks
Made (put mark “V” in the appropriate square):
according to accounting regulations (standards)
according to financial statement international standards

as of

Date (year, month, day)
according to EDRPOU

CODES
2021 01 01
42059219

according to KOATSU
according to KOPFG
according to KVED

803850000
240
64.92

0443903031

V

Balance Sheet (Statement of Financial Position)
December 31,
2020

Form No. 1 Code according to DKUD (State classifier of administrative documentation)

1801001

ASSETS

Line
code

At the beginning
of reporting
period

At the end of
the reporting
period

1

2

3

4

1000

2,614

2,419

1001
1002
1005
1010
1011
1012
1015
1016
1017
1020
1021
1022

2,806
192
1,130
1,605
475
-

3,217
798
3,408
4,514
1,106
-

1030

-

-

1035
1040
1045
1050
1060
1065
1090
1095

3,744

5,827

1100
1101
1102
1103
1104
1110
1115
1120
1125

-

-

1130

547

1,970

1135
1136
1140
1145
1155
1160
1165
1166
1167
1170
1180

23
9,917
50,601
4,216
4,216
-

6
20,300
49,370
417
417
-

1181

-

-

1182
1183
1184

-

-

I. Non-current assets
Intangible assets
initial cost
accumulated depreciation
Incomplete capital investment
Fixed assets
initial cost
depreciation
Investment property
Initial cost of investment property
Depreciation of investment real estate
Long-term biological assets
Initial cost of long-term biological assets
Accumulated depreciation on long-term biological assets
Long-term financial investments:
accounted for using the equity method of other entities
other financial investments
Long-term accounts receivables
Deferred tax assets
Goodwill
Deferred tax expense
Balance of funds in centralized insurance reserve funds
Other non-current assets
Total under Section I
II. Current assets
Inventory stocks
Production stocks
Unfinished construction
Finished products
Goods
Current biological assets
Reinsurance deposits
Promissory notes received
Accounts receivable for products, goods, works, services
Accounts receivable:
under advance payments made
with budget
including value added tax
Accounts receivable from income accrued
Accounts receivable from internal calculations accrued
Other current accounts receivables
Current financial investments
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash
Bank accounts
Expenses of future periods
Reinsurance share in insurance reserves
including that in:
reserves of long-term liabilities
loss reserves or reserves of due payments
reserves of unearned premiums
other insurance reserves
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Other current assets

1190

-

-

Total under Section II

1195

65,304

72,063

III. Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups
Balance sheet

1200

-

-

1300

69,048

77,890

At the beginning
At the end of the
of reporting
reporting period
period

LIABILITIES

Line
code

1

2

3

4

Registered (share) capital

1400

5,200

5,200

Contributions to the unregistered authorized capital
Capital in revaluation
Additional capital
Emission income
Accumulated exchange rate differences
Reserve capital
Retained earnings (uncovered loss)
Unpaid capital
Capital withdrawn
Other reserves
Total under Section I
II. Long-term liabilities and collateral
Deferred tax liabilities
Pension obligations
Long-term bank credits
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term collateral
Long-term staff costs collateral
Targeted financing
Charity
Insurance reserves
including:
reserve of long-term liabilities
loss reserve or reserve of due payments
reserve of unearned premiums
other insurance reserves
Investment contracts
Prize fund
Jackpot pay out reserve
Total under Section II
III. Current liabilities and collateral
Short-term bank credits
Promissory notes issued
Current accounts payable for:
long-term liabilities

1401
1405
1410
1411
1412
1415
1420
1425
1430
1435
1495

170
2,581
7,951

170
5,331
10,701

І. Equity

goods, works, services
calculations and budget
including income tax
insurance calculations
calculations for the labour payment
Current accounts payable on advances received
Current accounts payable on payments with members
Current accounts payable on internal accounts
Current accounts payable on insurance activities
Current collateral
Future revenues
Deferred commission income from reinsurers
Other current liabilities
Total under Section III
IV. Liabilities related to non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups
V. Net asset value of non-governmental pension fund
Balance sheet

) (
) (

1500
1505
1510
1515
1520
1521
1525
1526
1530

478
-

1,782
-

1531

-

-

1532
1533
1534
1535
1540
1545
1595

478

1,782

1600
1605

-

-

1610

-

-

1615
1620
1621
1625
1630
1635
1640
1645
1650
1660
1665
1670
1690
1695
1700
1800
1900

5,958
565
565
293
53,803
60,619
69,048

3,320
204
204
794
61,089
65,407
77,890

Head

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Ivashchenko Iryna Viktorivna

Chief Accountant

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Kalashnikova Natalia Mykolaivna

/Round seal: Electronic signature/
code 42059219/

1

(
(

)
)

/Round seal: Ukraine, Kyiv, Limited Liability Company "GOFINGO", Identification

Defined in the order established by the central executive authority, which implements the state policy in the field of statistics.
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Date (year, month, day)
under
EDRPOU

Company LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
"GOFINGO"________________________

CODES
2021
01
01
42059219

(name)

/Stamp: DOCUMENT ACCEPTED/
Statement of Financial Results (Statement of Comprehensive Income)
for Year 2020
Form No. 2

Code according to DKUD

1801003

I. FINANCIAL RESULTS
Item

Line
code

For the reporting
period

Compared to the
same period of the
previous year

1
Net income from sales of products (goods, works, services)
Net earned insurance premiums
premiums signed, gross amount
premiums transferred for reinsurance
changes in the unearned premium reserve, gross amount
change in the share of reinsurers in the reserve of unearned premiums

2
2000
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

3
390,156
-

4
131,682
-

Prime cost of sales (goods, works, services)

2050

Net losses incurred on insurance payments
Gross:
profit
loss
Income (expenses) from changes in long-term liabilities reserves

2070

-

-

2090

390,156

131,682

2105

-

-

Income (expenses) from changes in other insurance reserves
change in other insurance reserves, gross amount
change in the share of reinsurers in other insurance reserves
Other operating income

2110
2111
2112
2120

29,270

70,574

2121

-

-

2122

-

-

2123

-

-

including:
income from changes in the value of assets that are measured at fair
value
income from the initial recognition of biological assets and
agricultural products
income from the use of tax-exempt assets
Administrative expenses
Selling expenses
Other operating expenses
including:
cost of changes in the value of assets that are measured at fair value
costs from initial recognition of biological assets and agricultural
products
Financial performance after operating activities:
profit
loss
Income from participation in capital
Other financial income
Other income
including:
charity assistance income
Financial expenses
Losses from participation in capital
Other expenses
Profit (loss) from the impact of inflation on monetary articles

2095

2130
2150
2180

(

(

(
(
(

-

-

86,557
333,836

) (

) (

) (
) (
) (

-

-

-

-

2182

-

-

2190

-

15,660

)
)
)

(

9,076
-

) (

1
-

)

(
(
(

4,696
59
-

) (
) (
) (

12,838
-

)
)
)

2241
2250
2255
2270
2275

)

79,856
106,740

2181

2195
2200
2220
2240

)

/Round seal: Electronic signature/
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Continuation of Appendix 2
Financial performance before tax:
profit
loss
Income tax expenses (income)
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations after tax
Net financial result:
profit
loss

2290
2295
2300
2305

3,354
(

(604)
-

2350
2355

2,823
) (

2,750
(

-

(508)
-

)

2,315
) (

-

)

II. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item
1
Revaluation (write-off) of fixed assets
Revaluation (write-off) of financial instruments
Accumulated exchange differences
Share of other combined income of associates and joint ventures
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income before taxation
Income tax related to other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income after taxation
Total income (sum of lines 2350, 2355 and 2460)

Line
code

For the reporting
period

Compared to the
same period of the
previous year

2
2400
2405
2410
2415
2445
2450
2455
2460
2465

3
2,750

4
2,315

Line
code

For the reporting
period

Compared to the
same period of the
previous year

2
2500
2505
2510
2515
2520
2550

3
284
9,458
1,714
1,357
407,580
420,393

4
93
5,110
859
667
179,867
186,596

III. OPERATING EXPENSES ELEMENTS
Item
1
Material costs
Salary expenses
Deductions for social events
Amortization
Other operating expenses
Total

IV. CALCULATION OF SHARES INCOME INDICATORS
Item
1
Average annual number of common shares
Adjusted average annual number of common shares
Net profit (loss) per one common share
Adjusted net income (loss) per common share
Dividends per one common share

Line
code

For the reporting
period

Compared to the
same period of the
previous year

2
2600
2605
2610
2615
2650

3
-

4
-

Head

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Ivashchenko Iryna Viktorivna

Chief Accountant

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Kalashnikova Natalia Mykolaivna

/Round seal: Electronic signature/
/Round seal: Ukraine, Kyiv, Limited Liability Company
"GOFINGO", Identification code 42059219/
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Date (year, month, day)
under
EDRPOU

Company LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
"GOFINGO"________________________

CODES
2021
01
01
42059219

(name)

/Stamp: DOCUMENT ACCEPTED/
Statement of Cash Flows (using the direct method)
for Year 2020
Form No. 3 Code according to DKUD

Item
1
І. Cash flows from operating activities
Proceeds from:
Sales of products (goods, works, services)
Refund of taxes and fees
including value-added tax
Targeted financing
Proceeds from subsidies, grants
Proceeds from advance payments of buyers and customers
Proceeds from the repayment of advances
Proceeds from interest on balances of current accounts
Proceeds from debtors' charges (fines, penalties)
Proceeds from operating lease income
Proceeds from royalties, author’s remunerations
Proceeds from insurance premiums
Proceeds of financial institutions from repayment of loans
Other proceeds
Spending on payment of:
Goods (works, services)
Labour
Deductions for social events
Taxes and charges
Expenditure on income tax liabilities
Expenditure on value added tax liabilities
Expenditure on other taxes and fees
Expenditures on advances
Expenditures on advance payments
Expenditures on payment of earmarked contributions
Expenditures on payment of obligations under insurance
contracts
Expenditures on financial institutions for lending
Other expenditures
Net cash flow from operating activities
II. Cash flows from investment activities
Proceeds from sales of:
financial investments
non-current assets
Proceeds received from:
interest
dividends
Proceeds from derivatives
Proceeds from loan repayment

Line
code
2

3

For the similar period of the
previous year
4

162,397
1,271
1
27,769
224,369
32

93,987
364
68,895
132,809
34,195

For reporting period

3000
3005
3006
3010
3011
3015
3020
3025
3035
3040
3045
3050
3055
3095

1801004

3100

(

80,958

) (

62,152

)

3105
3110
3115
3116
3117
3118
3135
3140
3145

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

7,151
1,745
2,908
1,171
66
-

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

3,906
889
1,549
482
5,041
-

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

3150

(

-

) (

-

)

3155
3190
3195

(
(

330,262
1,390
-8,641

) (
) (

240,858
36,006
-20,151

)
)

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

3200

-

-

3205

-

-

3215

-

-

3220
3225
3230

-

-

Proceeds from subsidiary and other business unit withdrawal

3235

-

-

Other proceeds

3250

-

-

10

Spending on acquisition:
financial investment

3255

(

-

) (

non-current assets

3260

(

-

) (

Derivative payments
Expenses on lending
Expenses for the acquisition of a subsidiary and another business
unit
Other payments

3270
3275

(
(

-

) (
) (

-

)
)

3280

(

-

) (

-

)

3290

(

-

) (

-

)

Net cash flow from investment activities

3295

-

-3,035

III. Cash flows as a result of financial activities
Revenues from:
Own equity
Obtaining loans

3300
3305

43,323

2,229
141,739

Revenues from the sale of a share in a subsidiary

3310

-

-

Other revenues
Expenses on:
Redemption of own shares
Repayment of loans
Payment of dividends
Expenses on interest payment
Expenses on financial lease arrears
Expenses on the acquisition of a share in a subsidiary
Expenses on non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
Other payments
Net cash flow from financial activities
Net cash flow for the reporting period
Balance at the beginning of the year
Effect of changes in exchange rates on the balance of funds
Balance at the year-end

3340

-

-

3345
3350
3355
3360
3365
3370
3375
3390
3395
3400
3405
3410
3415

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

37,099
)
1,846
-)
4,378
-4,263
4,216
464
417

) (
)
)
)
)
)
)

(
(
(
(
(
(

-

)

3,035

)

116,544
27,424
4,238
60
(82)
4,216

Head

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Ivashchenko Iryna Viktorivna

Chief Accountant

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Kalashnikova Natalia Mykolaivna

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

/Round seal: Electronic signature/
/Round seal: Ukraine, Kyiv, Limited Liability Company
"GOFINGO", Identification code 42059219/
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Date (year, month, day)
under
EDRPOU

Company LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
"GOFINGO"________________________

CODES
2021
01
01
42059219

(name)

Statement of Equity
for Year 2020
Form No. 4 Code according to DKUD

Item

Line
code

1

2

Registered
Capital in
(share) capital revaluations

Added
capital

Surplus
reserves

Retained
earnings Unpaid Withdrawn
(uncovered capital
capital
loss)

1801005
Total

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

5,200

-

170

-

2,581

-

-

7,951

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4090

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4095

5,200

-

170

-

2,581

-

-

7,951

4100

-

-

-

-

2,750

-

-

2,750

4110

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4111

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4112

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4113

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4114

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4116

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4200

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4205

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Deduction to reserve capital

4210

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amount of net profit due to
the budget according to the
legislation

4215

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amount of net profit for
creation of special (trust)
funds

4220

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance by the beginning
4000
of the year
Adjustment:
4005
Change in accounting policy
4010
Error correction
Other changes
Adjusted balance at the
beginning of the year
Net profit (loss) for the
reporting period
Other comprehensive
income for the reporting
period
Revaluation (write-off) of
non-current assets
Revaluation (write-off) of
financial instruments
Accumulated exchange
differences
Share of other combined
income of associates and
joint ventures
Other comprehensive
income
Profit sharing:
Payments to owners
(dividends)
Directing profit to registered
capital

/Round seal: Electronic signature/
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2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Amount of net income for
material incentives

1

4225

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Contributions of members:
Capital contributions

4240

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Debt repayment of capital

4245

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Withdrawal of capital:
Redemption of shares (stock)

4260

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Resale of purchased shares
(stock)

4265

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cancellation of repurchased
shares (stock)

4270

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Removal of a share in equity

4275

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Decrease in the par value of
shares

4280

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other changes in equity

4290

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4291

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4295

-

-

-

-

2,750

-

-

2,750

4300

5,200

-

170

-

5,331

-

-

10,701

Acquisition (sale) of a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary
Total changes in capital
Balance at the end of the
year

Head

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Ivashchenko Iryna Viktorivna

Chief Accountant

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Kalashnikova Natalia Mykolaivna

/Round seal: Electronic signature/
/Round seal: Ukraine, Kyiv, Limited Liability Company
"GOFINGO", Identification code 42059219/
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Date (year, month, day)
under
EDRPOU

Company LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
"GOFINGO"________________________

CODES
2020
01
01
42059219

(name)

Statement of Equity
for Year 2019
Form No. 4 Code according to DKUD

Item

Line
code

1

2

Registered
Capital in
(share) capital revaluations

Added
capital

Surplus
reserves

Retained
earnings Unpaid Withdrawn
(uncovered capital
capital
loss)

1801005
Total

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

5,200

-

-

-

14

(2,200)

-

3,014

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

141

-

252

-

-

393

4090

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4095

5,200

-

141

-

266

(2,200)

-

3,407

4100

-

-

-

-

2,315

-

-

2,315

4110

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4111

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4112

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4113

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4114

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4116

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4200

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4205

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Deduction to reserve capital

4210

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amount of net profit due to
the budget in accordance
with the legislation

4215

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Amount of net profit for
creation of special (trust)
funds

4220

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance by the beginning
4000
of the year
Adjustment:
4005
Change in accounting policy
4010
Error correction
Other changes
Adjusted balance at the
beginning of the year
Net profit (loss) for the
reporting period
Other comprehensive
income for the reporting
period
Revaluation (write-off) of
non-current assets
Revaluation (write-off) of
financial instruments
Accumulated exchange
differences
Share of other combined
income of associates and
joint ventures
Other comprehensive
income
Profit sharing:
Payments to owners
(dividends)
Directing profit to registered
capital

/Round seal: Electronic signature/
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2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Amount of net income for
material incentives

1

4225

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Contributions of members:
Capital contributions

4240

-

-

29

-

-

2,200

-

2,229

Debt repayment of capital

4245

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Withdrawal of capital:
Redemption of shares (stock)

4260

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Resale of purchased shares
(stock)

4265

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Cancellation of repurchased
shares (stock)

4270

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Removal of a share in equity

4275

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Decrease in the par value of
shares

4280

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Other changes in equity

4290

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4291

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4295

-

-

29

-

2,315

2,200

-

4,544

4300

5,200

-

170

-

2,581

-

-

7,951

Acquisition (sale) of a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary
Total changes in capital
Balance at the end of the
year

Head

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Ivashchenko Iryna Viktorivna

Chief Accountant

/electronic signature/

/signature/ Kalashnikova Natalia Mykolaivna

/Round seal: Electronic signature/
/Round seal: Ukraine, Kyiv, Limited Liability Company
"GOFINGO", Identification code 42059219/
True Copy: /signature/
/signature/ N.M. Kalashnikova
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LLC "GOFINGO"
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in UAH thousands)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY "GOFINGO"(hereinafter – the "Company") (EDRPOU code
42059219) is incorporated on April 10, 2018 and existing under the laws of Ukraine, entry No.: 1 074
102 0000 074607.
According to Order No. 876 of June 7, 2018, the Company is registered as a financial institution by
the National Commission for the State Regulation of Financial Services Markets (National
Commission of Financial Services) (Certificate No. 1042, series FK).
According to the Law of Ukraine "On Licensing of Types of Economic Activities" and approved by
the Resolution of the Cabinet of Ministers of Ukraine No. 913 of December 7, 2016 "Licensing
conditions for carrying out economic activities for the provision of financial services (except for
professional activities in the securities market), by Order No. 1124 of July 3, 2018, the Company
received an indefinite licence to carry out economic activities for the provision of financial services,
namely:
• provision of loans, including on the terms of a financial loan.
The Company's governing body is the Company's General Meeting of Members.
Direct management of the Company's activities is carried out by the Director – executive body of the
Company.
Control over the financial and economic activities of the Company is carried out by the audit
commission of the Company and the internal auditor.
The Company's founder with a 100% share is a legal entity - resident of Lithuania: CJSC "GO
FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES" (address: VILNIUS CITY SELF-GOVERNMENT, TERRITORY
OF VILNIUS CITY SELF-GOVERNMENT, LITHUANIA).
The authorized capital as of December 31, 2020 is UAH 5,200,000 (Five million two hundred
thousand).
The Company has no separate divisions as of December 31, 2020. As of December 31, 2020, the total
number of employees was 70 people, the average number for 2020 was 54 people.
Location of the Company's office: 1A Khoryva Street, Kyiv, 04071, official website:
https://www.gofingo.com.ua/, Email: info@gofingo.ua.
2. FUNDAMENTALS OF PREPARATION, APPROVAL AND SUBMISSION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management's statement of compliance
We have prepared the financial statements as at December 31, 2020 and for the fiscal year 2020,
which provide objectively, in all essential aspects, the financial condition of the Company and its
financial results for the fiscal year 2020 according to International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).
The Company's management is responsible for ensuring that the Company's accounting records
disclose the Company's financial performance with a sufficient level of accuracy and ensure that its
financial statements comply with IFRS and Ukrainian laws and regulations. The Company's
management is also generally responsible for taking all possible measures that ensure the safety of
the Company's assets and prevent and detect cases of abuse and other violations.
The management believes that in the process of preparing the financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies were applied, their application was consistent and supported by reasonable and
balanced assumptions and calculations. All relevant International Financial Reporting Standards in
The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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force as of January 1, 2020 were also observed. There was no early application of IFRS.
Date of approval of the financial statements before the issue
These annual financial statements were approved for release by the Company's Director on February
22, 2021.
Basis for preparation
These financial statements have been prepared according to all the requirements of IFRS,
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and interpretations developed by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), which were officially approved by the
Ministry of Finance of Ukraine as of January 1, 2020 and posted on its official website as of the date
of preparation of these financial statements.
When preparing its financial statements, the Company used historical (actual) cost to evaluate its
assets.
The main accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are listed below.
These accounting policies have been consistently applied throughout all reporting periods.
Functional currency and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in the UAH, which is the Company's functional currency.
All financial information presented in UAH is rounded up to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated.
Assumptions about the Company's functioning in the near future
The financial statements were prepared on the assumption that the Company will continue as a going
concern for the foreseeable future, providing for the sale of assets and repayment of liabilities in the
course of normal activities. In forming such a professional judgment, the management took into
account the financial performance, its existing intentions, possible financial support from the
Company's members, planned profitability in the future and access to financial resources, and
analysed the impact of the current financial and economic situation on the Company's future activities.
The Company operates in Ukraine. The economy of Ukraine is open, non-diversified and is
considered a market economy with signs of transition (emerging market countries), has a critical
dependence on world commodity prices and low liquidity on the international capital market. Under
such conditions, financial activity in Ukraine is characterized by high risks that are not typical for
developed markets.
In 2020, the Ukrainian economy was negatively affected by the global economic crisis burdened by
the pandemic (COVID-19). The rapid spread of the pandemic in 2020 prompted the governments of
many countries, including Ukraine, to introduce measures to combat the outbreak, including travel
restrictions, business closures, isolation of a certain territory, quarantine, etc.
In September 2020, Credit Rating Agency "Fitch" confirmed Ukraine's long-term foreign currency
default rating (IDR) at 'B' level with a stable outlook.
In September 2020, the National Bank of Ukraine decided to leave the discount rate unchanged at 6%
per annum. Maintaining a soft monetary policy by the National Bank has helped support the economic
recovery in the face of moderate inflation and a high level of uncertainty about the further course of
the pandemic (COVID-19) in Ukraine and around the world. The main assumption for applying a soft
monetary policy on the part of the National Bank and stabilizing the economic situation in Ukraine
The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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remains the continuation of cooperation with the International Monetary Fund, restoring the
development of the capital market, reforming the financial sector, legislative framework, judicial
system and other socio-economic factors, which should lead to the implementation of the best
European practices, fulfilling the conditions of Ukraine's association with the EU, creating a more
attractive investment climate.
From July 1, 2020, the National Bank of Ukraine became the legal successor of the National
Commission of Financial Services in the exercise of powers and performance of functions of state
regulation and supervision in the field of financial services markets in connection with the adoption
of the Law of Ukraine No. 79-IX of September 12, 2019 "On Amendments to Certain Legislative
Acts of Ukraine on Improving the Functions of State Regulation of Financial Services Markets", the
so-called law "On Split", which distributed the areas of regulation in the financial services market.
The reform of the financial sector over the past five years has contributed to macro-financial
stabilization and increased financial stability, reliability and transparency of banks. Split enables the
National Bank to continue to ensure financial stability more comprehensively and efficiently by
regulating not only the banking, but also the non-banking sector. In addition, it should promote further
integration of Ukraine into the EU within the framework of implementing EU Directives and other
documents and bringing the national regulatory framework in line with international standards. The
new regulation and supervision in the non-banking financial sector will be implemented according to
international standards in the same way as in the banking sector. The accumulated problems of the
market require updating the rules of doing business, creating transparent business conditions and
effective regulation. The reform of the non-banking sector will contribute to the sustainable
development of the country's economy and create opportunities for further development and
improvement of the market.
As of the date of approval of the reports, the Company continues to operate in an unstable political
and economic situation, the factors of which are threats to the territorial integrity of the state, the
ongoing armed aggression, a significant reduction and weak pace of recovery of the state of the
national economy and public finances, the volatility of financial markets, periodic spikes in inflation
and devaluation of the national currency, as well as overcoming the consequences of the coronavirus
pandemic (COVID-19). In this regard, a reliable assessment of the impact of the current economic
situation on the financial condition of the Company is subject to considerable difficulties. As a result,
there is uncertainty that may affect future transactions, the ability to recover the value of the
Company's assets, and the Company's ability to service it and pay its debts as they mature. These
financial statements do not include any adjustments that may occur as a result of such uncertainty.
Such adjustments will be reported if they become known and can be evaluated.
Applying new standards and interpretations
When preparing the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company applied
all new and revised standards and interpretations that are relevant to its operations and are mandatory
for use in the preparation of annual statements starting from January 1, 2020. The Company did not
apply pre-published standards, clarifications or amendments that were issued but did not enter into
force. The nature and impact of these changes are discussed below. Although the new standards and
amendments were applied for the first time in 2020, they did not have a significant impact on the
Company's annual financial statements. The nature and impact of each new standard/amendment are
described below:
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Standards that have been applied by the Company since January 1, 2020
Amendments to the conceptual framework of the financial statements (published on March 29,
2018 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020).
The new conceptual framework for financial statements contains a new chapter on valuation,
recommendations for reporting financial results, improved definitions and recommendations (in
particular, definitions of liabilities), and explanations on important issues such as the role of
management, prudence, and uncertainty in the preparation of financial statements.
Definition of a business – Amendments to IFRS 3 (issued on October 22, 2018 and valid for
acquisitions from the beginning of the annual reporting period, beginning on or after January 1,
2020).
These amendments make changes to the definition of a business. A business consists of inputs and
essential processes that together form the ability to generate returns. The new guide includes a system
that allows determining the availability of input data and a significant process, including for
companies in the early stages of development that have not yet made a profit. In the absence of returns,
for an enterprise to be considered a business, an organized labour force must be present. The definition
of "return" is narrowed to focus on the goods and services provided to customers, on creating
investment income and other profits, while eliminating results in the form of cost reduction and other
economic benefits. In addition, it is no longer necessary to assess whether market members are able
to replace missing elements or integrate acquired activities and assets. An organization can apply a
"concentration test". Acquired assets will not be considered a business if virtually all the fair value of
acquired gross assets is concentrated in a single asset (or a group of similar assets). Currently, the
application of the standard did not affect the financial statements during the reporting period.
Definition of material – Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 (issued on October 31, 2018 and valid
until annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020).
These amendments clarify the definition of materiality and application of this concept by including
recommendations for the definition that were previously presented in other IFRS standards. In
addition, explanations for this definition have been improved. The amendments also ensure
consistency in the use of the definition of materiality in all IFRS standards. Information is considered
material if it is reasonably expected that omission, misrepresentation or difficulty in understanding it
may affect decisions made by major users of general-purpose financial statements based on such
financial statements provided by the reporting entity. Currently, the application of the standard did
not affect the financial statements during the reporting period.
Indicative interest rate reform – Amendments to IAS 9, IAS 39 and IAS 7 (issued on September
26, 2019 and valid for annual periods starting from or after January 1, 2020).
The amendments were initiated by replacing benchmark interest rates such as LIBOR and other
interbank offered rates ("IBORs"). The amendments provide for a temporary exemption from
applying specific hedging accounting requirements to hedging relationships that are directly affected
by the IBOR reform. Cash flow hedging accounting under IAS 9 and IAS 39 requires that future
hedged cash flows are "very likely". If these cash flows depend on the IBOR, the relief provided for
in the amendments requires the entity to assume that the interest rate on which hedged cash flows are
The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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based does not change as a result of the reform. Both IAS 39 and IAS 9 require a forward-looking
valuation for hedging accounting applications. While cash flows at the IBOR and IBOR replacement
ratios are expected to be generally equivalent, minimizing any inefficiencies, this may no longer be
the case as the reform date approaches. Under the amendments, an entity may consider that the interest
rate reform on which the cash flows of a hedged item, hedging instrument, or hedging risk are based
is not changed by the IBOR reform. The IBOR reform may also cause hedging to exceed the 80125% range required by the retrospective test under IAS 39. Under the amendments, the entity may
assume that IAS 39 has been amended to provide an exception to the retrospective performance test
so that hedging does not stop during the period of uncertainty associated with IBOR just because the
retrospective performance is outside this range. However, other hedge accounting requirements,
including prospective valuation, must still be met. In some hedges, a hedged item or hedged risk is a
non-contractual component of IBOR risk. To apply hedging accounting, IAS 9 and IAS 39 require
that a specific risk component be identified separately and reliably measured. According to the
amendments, the risk component should be identified separately only for the initial purpose of the
hedge, and not on a permanent basis. Any hedge inefficiency will continue to be reflected in profit or
loss according to IAS 39 and IAS 9. The amendments that set the duration of benefits, including the
uncertainty caused by the reform of the base interest rate, no longer exist. The amendments require
entities to provide investors with additional information about their hedging relationships that are
directly affected by these uncertainties, including the nominal number of hedging instruments to
which benefits apply, any significant assumptions or judgments made when applying benefits, and
qualitative disclosures about how the organization is affected by the IBOR reform and manages the
transition process. Currently, the application of the standard did not affect the financial statements
during the reporting period.
IFRS 17 "Insurance contracts" (issued on May 18, 2017 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2021).
IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4, which allowed companies to apply the existing practice of accounting for
insurance contracts, as a result of which it was difficult for investors to compare and compare the
financial results in other aspects of similar insurance companies. IFRS 17 is a single, principle-based
accounting standard for all types of insurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts held by the
insurer. According to this standard, the recognition and evaluation of groups of insurance contracts
should be based on (i) the present value of future cash flows (cash flows upon contract performance),
adjusted for risk, which takes into account all available information about cash flows upon contract
performance, according to the observed market information, to which the amount of retained earnings
under the group of contracts (service margin under contracts) is added (if the value is an obligation)
or deducted (if the value is an asset) (ii). Insurers will reflect profits from a group of insurance
contracts for the period during which they provide insurance coverage and as they are released from
risk. If a group of contracts is or becomes unprofitable, the organization will immediately reflect the
loss. In addition, the potential impact of the standard on insurance products embedded in loan
agreements and similar instruments is being considered. Currently, the application of the standard did
not affect the financial statements during the reporting period.
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 – "Sales or contributions of assets between an investor and
its associate/joint venture" (issued on September 11, 2014 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after the date to be determined by the IAS Board).
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These amendments eliminate the discrepancy between the requirements of IFRS 10 and IAS 28
regarding the sale or contribution of assets to an associate or joint venture by an investor. The main
consequence of applying the amendments is that the profit or loss is recognized in full if the
transaction concerns a business. If the assets are not a business, even if the assets are owned by a
subsidiary, only a portion of the profit or loss is recognized. Currently, the application of the standard
did not affect the financial statements during the reporting period.
Amendments requiring entities to classify liabilities as current or non-current – Amendments to
IAS 1 (issued on January 23, 2020 and valid for annual periods starting from or after January 1,
2022).
These narrow clarifications make it clear that obligations are classified as current and non-current,
depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Liabilities are not current if the
entity has a fundamental right to delay settlements for at least twelve months at the end of the
reporting period. These narrow clarifications make it clear that guidelines no longer require such a
right to be unconditional. The management's expectations of whether they will later use the right to
deferred repayment do not affect the classification of liabilities. The right to deferral exists only if the
business entity complies with any relevant conditions as of the end of the reporting period. A liability
is classified as current if the condition is violated at or before the reporting date, even if the creditor
was waived from this condition after the end of the reporting period. Conversely, a loan is classified
as non-current if the loan agreement is violated only after the reporting date. In addition, the
amendments include clarifying the requirements for classifying debt that a company can repay by
converting it into equity. "Settlement" is defined as the repayment of liability in cash, other resources
representing economic benefits, or own equity instruments. There is an exception for convertible
instruments that can be converted to equity, but only for those instruments where the conversion
option is classified as an equity instrument as a separate component of a complex financial instrument.
Currently, the application of the standard did not affect the financial statements during the reporting
period.
Since the Company's current activities meet the requirements of the amendments, it is expected that
these amendments will not affect the Company's financial statements.
3. MAIN PROVISIONS OF THE ACCOUNTING POLICY
The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these
financial statements. No changes were made to the accounting policy during the reporting period.
Fixed assets
The Company's fixed assets are taking into account and stated in the financial statements according
to IAS 16 "Fixed assets".
Fixed assets are tangible objects, which are:
a) held for use in the provision of financial services;
b) expected to be used for more than one year and cost more than UAH 6,000. Non-current
assets whose value is lower than the established limit are not recognized as assets and are written off
as expenses of the current period.
Items of fixed assets are recorded at actual cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Every year, the Company's management determines the deviation of the residual value of fixed assets
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from their fair value. If significant deviations are identified, they are re-evaluated by the Company's
permanent commission.
Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated using a straight-line method using the terms established for
each item of fixed assets, in particular:
• houses – 20 years
• buildings – 15 years
• transmitting devices – 10 years;
• machinery and equipment – 5 years, including:
- electronic computers, other machines for automatic information processing, related means of
reading or printing information, related computer programs (except for programs whose purchase
costs are recognized as royalties, and/or programs that are recognized as an intangible asset), other
information systems, switches, routers, modules, modems, uninterruptible power supplies and means
of connecting them to telecommunications networks, phones (including cellular), microphones and
walkie-talkies, the cost of which exceeds UAH 6,000 – 2 years;
• vehicles – 5 years old;
• tools, appliances, inventory, furniture – 4 years;
• other fixed assets – 12 years.
Fixed assets are removed from the register upon their disposal or if no economic benefits are expected
from their further use. Profit or loss from disposal of an asset (calculated as the difference between
net income from disposal and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of
comprehensive income for the period, in which the asset is recognized.
The residual value, useful life, and depreciation methods of assets are analysed at the end of each
fiscal year and adjusted as needed.
Intangible assets
The Company uses a model of accounting for intangible assets at cost. This model assumes that an
intangible asset, once recognized, is accounted for at its original cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of each intangible asset is defined. The liquidation
value of intangible assets is zero. The value of an intangible asset with a final service life to be
depreciated is systematically distributed over its useful life. Depreciation begins when the asset is
usable. Depreciation is terminated on the date that occurs earlier: either on the date when the asset is
classified as held for sale, or on the date when the recognition of the asset ceases. The Company
applies a straight-line method of calculating the depreciation of intangible assets over their useful
life:
• rights to use natural resources (the right to use subsurface resources, other resources of the
natural environment, geological and other information about the natural environment) – according to
the title document;
• rights to use property (the right to use a land plot, except for the right to permanent use of a
land plot according to the law, the right to use a building, the right to rent premises, etc.) – according
to the title document;
• rights to commercial designations (rights to trademarks (marks for goods and services),
commercial (brand) names, etc.), except for those whose purchase costs are recognized as royalties –
according to the title document;
• rights to objects of industrial property (the right to inventions, utility models, industrial
designs, plant varieties, animal breeds, layout (topography) of integrated circuits, trade secrets,
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including know-how, protection from unfair competition, etc.), except for those whose acquisition
costs are recognized as royalties – according to the title document, but no less than 5 years;
• copyright and related rights (the right to literary, artistic, musical works, computer programs,
programs for electronic computers, compilations of data (databases), phonograms, videograms,
programs of broadcasting organizations, etc.), except for those whose purchase costs are recognized
as royalties – according to the title document, but no less than 2 years;
• other intangible assets (the right to conduct business, use economic and other privileges, etc.)
– according to the title document.
Expected useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If
necessary, appropriate changes are made to the estimates to take into account their impact in future
reporting periods.
Asset impairment
At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there are signs of possible asset impairment.
If such signs exist, the cost of recovery of the asset is calculated to determine the amount of
impairment losses (if any). The cost of the expected recovery of an asset is more than two values: the
fair value of the asset less the cost of sale and the cost of using the asset. The amount of expected
recovery is determined for an individual asset, except for assets that do not generate cash receipts and
are mostly independent of receipts generated by other assets or a group of assets. If the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its expected recovery, the asset is considered impaired and is written off
to the recovery value. When assessing the value of an asset's use, future cash flows are discounted at
the pre-tax discount rate, which reflects the current market valuation of the value of money over time
and the risks inherent in the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income for the period as part of those expense categories that correspond to the
function of the impaired asset.
Fair value
Fair value is the price that will be received from the sale of an asset or paid for liability in a normal
transaction between market members at the valuation date. The best indicator of fair value is the price
in an active market. An active market is a market where transactions in relation to assets and liabilities
take place with sufficient frequency and in sufficient volumes to provide pricing information on a
current basis.
The Company applies value assessment methods that are appropriate to the circumstances and for
which there is sufficient data to estimate fair value, maximizing the use of relevant open input data
and minimizing the use of closed input data. The purpose of applying the value estimation method is
to determine the price at which a normal transaction of selling an asset or transferring a liability
between market members would take place as of the date of assessment of current market conditions.
The Company uses the following methods of value estimation: market approach, cost approach and
income approach. If several assessment methods are used to measure fair value, the results are
evaluated taking into account the acceptability of the range of values indicated by such results. The
fair value estimate is the point in the range that best represents the fair value in the circumstances.
The Company selects input data that corresponds to the characteristics of the asset or liability, which
would be taken into account by market members in transactions with the asset or liability. The
Company uses input data from exchange markets.
Fair value measurements are analysed by levels of the fair value hierarchy as follows:
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➢ Level 1 is estimates at quote prices (without adjustments) in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities;
➢ Level 2 is a valuation methodology with all the essential parameters available to monitor
assets and liabilities, either directly (i.e., prices) or indirectly (i.e., determined based on
prices), and
➢ Level 3 is an estimate that is not based solely on the data available on the market (i.e., the
estimate requires significant application of parameters for which there are no observations).
The transition from level to level of the fair value hierarchy is considered to have taken place at the
end of the reporting period.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes cash at the cash desk and current account balances in banks. Cash equivalents include
short-term investments with an initial maturity of three months or less, which can be converted into
certain amounts of cash and which are characterized by a small risk of changes in value.
Inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of the two values: cost and net realisable value. Inventory valuation
at disposal is carried out using the weighted average estimation method.
The net realisable value represents the estimated sale price in the course of ordinary business activities
less the estimated refinement costs and expenses required to complete the trade transaction. Inventory
is reviewed periodically to create reserves for quality degradation, ageing, or excess inventory.
Financial assets
The Company identifies the following categories of classification and valuation of financial assets:
• financial assets accounted for at depreciated cost;
• financial assets accounted for at fair value with revaluation through other comprehensive
income;
• financial assets accounted for at fair value with revaluation due to profit or loss.
The Company classifies and evaluates financial assets based on the business model that the Company
will use to manage these assets and the cash flow characteristics provided for in the contract. In some
cases, as IFRS 9 allows, the option of measuring financial assets at fair value is used, even if such an
assessment was not the result of an assessment of the business model and cash flow characteristics,
but the Company did not plan to use such an option in its accounting and reporting.
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Decision tree diagram for determining the category classification and valuation of financial
assets:
The asset is held to
obtain contractual cash
flows?
Yes

No

The asset is held to obtain
contractual cash flows
or sale?

Depreciated cost price

Fair value with
reassessment
through profit or
loss

Yes

Does the contract provide exclusively for the payment of book value
and interest?

Yes

No

No

Yes
Fair value with
reassessment through other
comprehensive income

The Company's depreciated financial assets include accounts receivable on issued financial loans and
accounts receivable on accrued interest for the use of these loans, as well as arrears on repayable
financial benefits provided for a period of up to 12 months.
Applying the analysis of discounted cash flows, the Company uses one or more discount rates that
correspond to the prevailing income standards in the market for financial instruments that have mainly
similar conditions and characteristics, including the credit quality of the instrument, the balance of
the term during which the interest rate on the contract is fixed, as well as the balance of the term to
maturity of the principal amount and the currency in which payments will be made.
The Company applies the material criterion for discounting short-term debt, namely, if the difference
between the nominal amount of debt and its discounted value is less than 20%, such debt is not subject
to discount.
Termination of recognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where appropriate, part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) ceases to be recognized when:
• rights to receive cash flows from the asset have ceased to apply;
• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or retained its
right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without significant delay to a third party under the "transfer" agreement; and
• The Company either (a) transferred virtually all risks and benefits on the asset, or (b) did
not transfer or retain all significant risks and benefits on the asset, but transferred control of
the asset.
After the transfer, the Company revalues the extent to which it retains the risks and benefits of owning
the transferred asset. If all significant risks and benefits have been retained, the asset continues to be
reflected in the statement of financial position. If all significant risks and benefits have been
transferred, the asset ceases to be recognized. If all significant risks and benefits have not been
retained or transferred, the Company evaluates whether it has retained control of the asset. If the
Company does not retain control, the asset ceases to be recognized. If the Company retains control
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over the asset, it continues to recognize the asset to the extent that it continues to participate in it.
Termination of recognition of financial obligations
A financial obligation ceases to be recognized when the obligation is fulfilled, cancelled or expired.
When an existing financial obligation is replaced by another obligation to the same creditor on
significantly different terms or the terms of the existing obligation are significantly changed, such
exchange or change is accounted for as termination of recognition of the original obligation and
recognition of the new obligation, and the difference in the corresponding book value is recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income / (loss).
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are mutually set off, and the statement of financial position reflects the
net residual amount only when the Company has a legally established right to offset the recognized
amounts and intends to either set off on a net basis or sell the asset and simultaneously repay the
liability. When accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify as termination of
recognition, the Company does not set off the transferred asset and related liability.
Leases
The Company adopted IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019 using a modified retrospective approach. IAS 16
"Leases" amended the current lease accounting requirements contained in IAS 17 "Leases", IFRIC 4
"Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease", SIC 15 "Operating Leases – Incentives"
and SIC 27 "Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease" and introduced
a single model for accounting for lease agreements by tenants, which provides for their reflection on
the tenant's balance sheet.
Under this model, the tenant recognizes the asset in the form of a right of use, which is a right to use
the underlying asset, and a lease obligation, which is an obligation to make lease payments.
The Company recognizes the lease term based on its own judgment and confidence that the Company
will take advantage of the possibility of extending the lease. At the same time, the Company takes
into account all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company
to take advantage of the possibility of extending the lease.
The Company applies the recognition exemption to short-term lease agreements and leases of lowcost properties.
A short-term lease is a lease that, as of the start date of the lease according to the terms of the lease
agreement, has a lease term of 12 months or less, and this agreement does not contain the terms of
automatic extension of the lease term and the Company does not intend to extend the lease term
specified in the agreement or acquire the asset. The low cost of the underlying asset is the cost that is
less than UAH 30 thousand. Lease payments for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognized as lease expenses on a linear basis over the lease term.
Previously, the Company recognized lease expenses on a straight-line basis throughout the lease term
and recognized assets and liabilities only in so far as there was a difference in time between actual
lease payments and recognized expenses.
Potential liabilities
Potential liabilities are not reflected in the financial statements, except in cases where there is a
possibility that resources that embody economic benefits will be disposed of to repay the liability,
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and the amount of such liabilities can be reliably estimated. Information on such liabilities is subject
to reflection, except in cases where the possibility of an outflow of resources that represent economic
benefits is unlikely.
Reserves
The impairment requirements of IFRS 9 are complex and require the application of judgments and
assumptions, especially to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on a
financial instrument since its initial recognition; as well as the inclusion of forward-looking
information in the assessment of expected credit losses. The level of judgment required to assess
expected credit losses depends on the availability of detailed information. Expected credit losses are
a calculated estimate weighted with the probability of credit losses. To assess whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk of a financial instrument, the Company compares the risk of
default at the reporting date with the risk of default at the time of initial recognition of the financial
instrument. In general, the Company uses a general rule: financial assets should be valued as assets
for which credit risk has increased significantly since the initial recognition before they become
clearly impaired.
Estimating reserves for expected credit losses requires the use of substantial professional judgment.
The Company regularly reviews its credits to assess for a significant increase in credit risk or default.
The Company evaluates reserves for expected credit losses to maintain the amounts of reserves at a
level that, in the opinion of management, will be sufficient for the expected losses on financial assets
and credit obligations.
Revenue recognition
The Company recognizes revenues in the form of interest accrual. Interest is recognized in the
reporting period to which it relates and is calculated based on the base of their accrual and the period
of use of the relevant assets of the Company, that is, the recognition of income by the Company is
carried out on an accrual basis (according to documents confirming the provision of a loan, such as a
loan agreement, payment schedule, etc.).
Net financial expenses
Net financial expenses include the cost of paying interest on attracted loans and borrowings, profit
and loss from the discount of financial instruments. Net financial expenses are recorded in the
statement of comprehensive income. Interest expenses related to loans are recognized as expenses at
the time of their occurrence.
Income tax
Income tax expenses include income tax for the current period. Current income tax is the amount of
tax due or received in relation to taxable profit or tax losses for the year, calculated based on current
or essentially effective tax rates as of the reporting date, as well as all adjustments to the amount of
income tax obligations for previous years.
Loan costs
Loan costs, which are not part of a financial instrument and are not capitalized as part of the cost of
assets are recognized as expenses for the period.
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Foreign currency transactions
Foreign currency transactions are accounted in UAH at the official exchange rate of the NBU as of
the date of transactions.
In the financial statements, assets are recorded in UAH equivalent at the official exchange rate of the
NBU as of the reporting date.
The official exchange rates of UAH against foreign currencies at the end of the period that the
Company used in the preparation of these financial statements are presented as follows:
December 31, 2020
December 31, 2019
• UAH/USD 1
28.2746
23.6862
• UAH/EUR 1
34.7396
26.422
Contingent liabilities and assets
The Company does not recognize contingent liabilities in the Statement of financial position (Balance
sheet). Information about a contingent liability is disclosed if the possibility of disposal of resources
that embody economic benefits is not remote.
The Company does not recognize contingent assets. Brief information about a contingent asset is
disclosed when economic benefits are available.
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS
Preparation of financial statements according to IFRS requires the Company's management to
determine estimates and assumptions affecting the amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the reporting date, as well as the amount of income and expenses
for the reporting period. The definition of such estimates includes subjective factors and depends on
experience, current and expected economic conditions, and other available information. Actual results
may differ from specific estimates.
The most significant areas that require the use of management estimates and assumptions are
presented as follows:
• useful life of fixed assets and intangible assets;
• measurement of the fair value of fixed assets based on their revaluation and impairment;
• reserve for expected credit losses
Useful life of fixed assets and intangible assets
The assessment of the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets is the subject of professional
judgment, which is based on the experience of using similar assets. Future economic benefits from
these assets arise mainly from their current use in the provision of services. However, other factors,
such as physical and moral wear and tear, often lead to changes in the amount of future economic
benefits that are expected to be derived from the use of these assets.
The Company's management periodically evaluates the accuracy of the final useful life of fixed assets
and intangible assets. The effect of the revision of the final useful life of fixed assets and intangible
assets is reflected in the period when such revision took place or in future reporting periods, if
applicable. Accordingly, this may affect the amount of future depreciation charges and the carrying
amount of fixed assets.
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Estimation of the fair value of fixed assets based on their revaluation and impairment
The Company should periodically, as it has been established by the management, conduct a test for
possible revaluation of its fixed assets.
In addition, the Company's fixed assets are analysed for signs of impairment. When determining signs
of impairment, assets that do not generate independent cash flows belong to the corresponding unit
that generates cash flows. Management inevitably applies subjective judgment when assigning assets
that do not generate independent cash flows to appropriate generating units, as well as when
estimating the timing and magnitude of the corresponding cash flows as part of calculating the asset's
value in use.
Reserve for expected credit losses
The Company reflects assets in its financial statements, taking into account the impairment of assets
accounted for according to IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets".
The impairment of financial instruments is reflected according to IFRS 9 in the following order.
The Company recognizes a loss reserve for expected credit losses on a financial asset valued at
depreciated cost or on a credit liability.
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e., the present value of
all lost amounts of cash for the entire expected life of a financial instrument). Lost amounts of cash
are the difference between the cash flows due to be paid to the Company under the contract and the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive. Since the expected credit losses take into account
the amount and urgency of payments, credit losses arise even if the Company expects to receive
payment in full, but later than the contractual deadline for its payment.
The Company estimates, as at each reporting date, the provision for losses on a financial instrument
in the amount equal to the expected credit losses for the entire term of validity of the financial
instrument, if the credit risk on such financial instrument has increased significantly since the initial
recognition. If as of the reporting date, the credit risk of a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since its initial recognition, the Company estimates the reserve for losses on such a
financial instrument in the amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses.
If the Company in the previous reporting period estimated the reserve for losses on a financial
instrument in the amount equal to the expected credit losses for the entire term of the financial
instrument, but as of the current reporting date found that the criteria for such recognition are no
longer met, the Company estimates the reserve for losses in the amount equal to the 12-month
expected credit losses as of the current reporting date. The Company recognizes the amount of
expected credit losses (or performs recovery) necessary to adjust the loss reserve as of the reporting
date to the amount to be recognized as profit or loss from impairment in profit or loss.
As of each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit risk of the financial instrument
has increased significantly since its initial recognition. When performing such an assessment, the
Company uses a change in the risk of default (non-fulfilment of obligations) during the expected term
of the financial instrument instead of changing the amount of expected credit losses.
5. FIRST APPLICATION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 were prepared for the first time
according to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Accordingly, as indicated in the
accounting policy, the Company has prepared its financial statements according to the IFRS
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requirements applicable to accounting periods starting from January 1, 2018 or later.
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The movement of intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:
Software

Total

Initial cost
as of January 1, 2020
received
withdrawn
as of December 31, 2020

Depreciation
as of January 1, 2020
accrued
as of December 31, 2020
Book value:
as of January 1, 2020
as of December 31, 2020

2,806
411
0
3,217

2,806
411
0
3,217

192
606
798

192
606
798

2,614
2,419

2,614
2,419

The Company did not revalue its existing intangible assets.
7. FIXED ASSETS
The movement of fixed assets for the period ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:
Office
appliances,
equipment,
inventory

Other non-current
material
assets
Underlying rental
asset

Total

Initial cost
as of January 1, 2020
received
withdrawn
as of December 31, 2020
Depreciation
as of January 1, 2020
accrued
withdrawn
as of December 31, 2020

289
788
179
898

1,316
2,300
0
3,616

1,605
3,088
179
4,514

72
263
120
215

403
488
0
891

475
751
120
1,106

Book value:
as of January 1, 2020

217

913

1,130

as of December 31, 2020

683

2,725

3,408
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The Company did not revalue its fixed assets as of the reporting date. As a result of studying prices
for similar fixed assets (for which such information is available), the Company's management
concluded that the fair value of fixed assets does not significantly differ from their book value.
As of the reporting date, fixed assets have not been pledged in any way and are not restricted in the
disposal and use of the Company.
Fixed assets that are temporarily unused are not available as of December 31, 2020.
8. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
The Company does not own long-term financial investments.
9. CURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Current accounts receivable at the end of the reporting period include arrears for goods, works,
services, loans granted to individuals and legal entities, and accrued interest for the use of these loans,
which were not paid at the reporting date.
The Company recognizes a loss reserve for expected credit losses on a financial asset valued at
depreciated cost or on a credit liability.
The net book value of accounts receivable is considered a significant approximation to fair value.
Accounts receivable are expected to be repaid within 1 month from the reporting date. Given this, the
change in the value of money over time is not significant.
The Company's management believes that accounts receivable will be repaid by receiving funds.
Current accounts receivable as at December 31, 2020 are:
9.1. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ON ADVANCES ISSUED:
January 1,
Indicators
2020
Accounts receivable to resident suppliers for advances
paid for future deliveries of goods, works and services
(line 1130)
547
Accounts receivable on issued advances with the budget
(line 1135)
23
Total
570

December
31, 2020

1,970
6
1,976

9.2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FOR SETTLEMENTS ON ACCRUED INCOME
(LINE 1140):

Indicators
Balance of accrued, but unpaid interest on loans issued
by individuals
Recognized reserve of expected credit losses from
unpaid interest on loans issued by individuals
Total

January 1,
2020
49,044

276,782

(39,127)
9,917

(256,482)
20,300

9.3. OTHER CURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (LINE 1155):
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Indicators
Balance of debt on issued and outstanding loans of
individuals

January 1,
2020

Balance of outstanding repayable financial assistance
issued to legal entity for up to 12 months
Recognized reserve of expected credit losses on loan
debts of individuals
Balance of funds in the payment system "Platon"
Total

December 31,
2020

116,655

215,818

589

0

(66,643)
0
50,601

(173,818)
7,370
49,370

10. CURRENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (LINE 1160):
As of December 31, 2020, there are no current financial investments.
11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at December 31, 2020 cash and cash equivalents include funds on current accounts of banks:
Indicators
UAH on current accounts
Cash
Balance of funds in the payment system’s account
Total

January 1,
2020
4,168
0
48
4,216

December
31, 2020
417
0
0
417

Access to funds is free with no restrictions.
12. AUTHORIZED CAPITAL (LINE 1400):
As of December 31, 2020, the Company's declared authorized capital amounted to UAH 5,200 (five
million two hundred) thousand. According to the Charter, the Company's member is a legal entity resident of Lithuania: CJSC "GO FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES" (address: VILNIUS CITY SELFGOVERNMENT, TERRITORY OF VILNIUS CITY SELF-GOVERNMENT, LITHUANIA). The
actual paid-up authorized capital is UAH 5,800 (five million eight hundred) thousand.
The Company's member paid contributions to the authorized capital by transferring funds in foreign
currency (EUR) to the Company's current foreign currency accounts and credited as follows:
Table 1
Payment date based
on bank statements

Bank

Amount,
EUR

Official NBU Amount, UAH Credited to the Credited to
exchange rate as
authorized
added
of the payment
capital, UAH
capital,
date, UAH
UAH
31,4088 3,140,880.00 3,000,000.00 140,880.00
May 4, 2018 JSC “ALFA- 100,000.00
BANK”
CB
January 17, 2019
55,000.00
31,898883 1,754,438.57 1,754,438.57
0.00
“PRIVATBANK”
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January 22, 2019

TOTAL:

CB
14,953.00
“PRIVATBANK”
*
169,953.00

31,755196

*

474,835.45

445,561.43

29,274.02

5,370,154.02

5,200,000.00

170,154.02

That is, the actual paid-up authorized capital is UAH 5,200,000.00 (five million two hundred
thousand).
To create the registered authorized capital, the founders and members did not attract promissory
notes, insurance reserves, as well as funds received on credit, loan and secured, budget funds and
intangible assets.
13. ADDED CAPITAL (LINE 1410):
As of December 31, 2020, The Company takes into account the added capital in the amount of
UAH 170 thousand, which arose as a result of overpaid amounts by the member of the Company
CJSC "GO FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES" for the formation of the authorized capital of the
Company (Table 1).
14. RETAINED EARNINGS (LINE 1420):
As of January 1, 2020, retained earnings amounted to UAH 2,581 thousand.
As of December 31, 2020, retained earnings amount to UAH 5,331 thousand.
15. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (LINE 1515):
For the first time, the Company has applied the new IFRS 16 "Leases" standard and some
amendments to the standards that have entered into force for annual periods starting on or after
January 1, 2019. The Company did not apply in advance standards, clarifications or amendments that
were issued but did not enter into force.
The Company recognized assets related to the right of use and lease obligations previously classified
as operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. Lease obligations
were recognized based on the reduced remaining lease payments discounted using the effective rate
at the date of the first application.
For new assets that the Company began to lease during the reporting year, the Company recognized
the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that will be made during the lease term. The
Company recognizes the lease term based on its own judgment and confidence that the Company will
take advantage of the possibility of extending the lease. At the same time, the Company takes into
account all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to
take advantage of the possibility of extending the lease. The Company applies the recognition
exemption to short-term lease agreements (i.e., agreements that provide for a lease term of less than
12 months at the start date of the lease and do not contain the possibility of purchase).
The Company also applies an exemption from recognition in relation to assets with a low value to
lease agreements for office equipment and lease agreements for other assets, the value of which is
considered low, less than UAH 30 thousand. Lease payments for short-term leases and leases of lowvalue assets are recognized as lease expenses on a linear basis over the lease term.
As at December 31, 2020, other non-current liabilities include:
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Indicators
Discount value of other long-term obligations under
office space lease agreements
Total

January 1,
2020

478
478

December
31, 2020

1,782
1,782

16. CURRENT ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at December 31, 2020, current liabilities include:
Indicators
Current accounts payable for goods, works and services
(line 1615)
Current accounts payable for income tax settlements
with the budget (line 1620)

January 1,
2020

December
31, 2020

5,958

3,320

565

204

Other current liabilities as at December 31, 2020 are represented by the following calculations (line
1690):
January 1,
December
Indicators
2020
31, 2020
Current accounts payable on short-term loans (up to 12
months) received from financial company
15,786
28,985
Current accounts payable on short-term loans (up to 12
months) interest received from financial company
13,186
6,416
Current accounts payable on a non-resident loan
(Lithuania)
Current accounts payable on a non-resident loan
interest (Lithuania)
Current accounts payable on execution orders
Total

24,831

25,352

0

334

0
53,803

2
61,089

17. ENSURING STAFF PAYMENTS (LINE 1660):
Securing staff payments includes obligations to pay for employee leave, which the Company will
pay in the future when granting vacations, or in the form of compensation
in case of dismissal of employees who have unused vacations left.
January 1,
December
Indicators
2020
31, 2020
Securing payments for unused vacations
293
794
293
794
Total
18. NET INCOME (REVENUE) FROM SALES (LINE 2000):
For the year ended December 31, 2020, revenue from sales of services includes:
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Indicators
Income on accrued interest for the use of financial
loans

2020

2019

390,156

131,682

Total

390,156

131,682

19. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
For the year ended December 31, 2020, other operating income is determined in the amount of:
Indicators
2020
2019
Fines and penalties received
27,769
68,895
Income from currency revaluation
1,501
1,679
Total
29,270
70,574
20. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
For the year ended December 31, 2020, administrative expenses include:
Indicators
Remuneration of labour
USC deductions
Vacation reserve
Depreciation
Material costs
Disposal of fixed assets and intangible assets
Bank and payment system services
Rent of other equipment, utilities of rented premises,
security and fire safety
Travel expenses
VAT on non-resident consulting services
Legal services, audit, notary expenses, information and
IT consulting, translation services, etc.
Debt collection services
Communication services, internet services, advertising
services and message placers
Lead generation and advertising services
Customer risk assessment (communication services,
UBCH, IBCH)
Total

2020
8,700
1,714
758
1,357
280
0
8,130

2019
4,708
859
402
667
93
5
822

318
13
0

0
41
482

4,641
6,076

664
8,072

10,690
40,699

11,431
51,610

3,181

0

86,557

79,856

21. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
For the year ended December 31, 2020, other operating expenses include:
Indicators
2020
Reserve of expected credit losses on the main debt
among issued short-term loans
107,175
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Reserve of expected credit losses on interest among
issued short-term loans
Negative exchange rate difference from foreign
currency transactions
NCFSU penalties
Tax and fees penalties
Association contributions
Material expenses
Representation expenses and taxes
The cost of the transferred loan portfolio
Total

22. OTHER FINANCIAL INCOME (LINE 2220):
For the year ended December 31, 2020, other financial expenses include:
Indicators
Bank interest
Recalculation of interest on the loan (part of the debt
forgiveness)
Total
23. OTHER FINANCIAL EXPENSES (LINE 2250):
For the year ended December 31, 2020, other financial expenses include:
Indicators
Financial expenses for lease obligations
Interest under the loan agreement received from
a financial company
Interest under a non-resident loan (Lithuania)
Total

217,356

39,127

8,935

427

238
0
36
4
56

82
5
30
0
426

36
333,836

0
106,740

2020
1

2019
1

9,075
9,076

0
1

2020
111

2019
176

2,304

12,662

2,281
4,696

0
12,838

24. FINANCIAL RESULT (LINES 2290, 2300, 2350):
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the financial result and net financial result were as follows:
Indicators
2020
2019
Financial result before taxation
(Profit) (line 2290)
3,354
2,823
Income tax expenses (line 2300)
(604)
(508)
Net financial result (profit)
(line 2350)
2,750
2,315
25. CASH FLOW (USING THE DIRECT METHOD):
The cash flow statement for 2020 is prepared following the requirements of IAS 7 using the direct
method, according to which information is disclosed on the main classes of gross cash receipts or
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gross cash payments on a net basis. The report reflects cash flows from operating, investment and
financial activities.
Operating activities consist of making a profit from ordinary activities. Operating activities are the
main activity of the Company for generating income. The amount of cash flow resulting from
operating activities is a key indicator used to assess an enterprise's ability to generate cash flows
sufficient to repay loans, maintain the Company's operating capacity, pay dividends, and make new
investments without attracting external sources of financing.
Investment activities are the receipt or use of funds that have occurred as a result of the acquisition
or sale of non-current assets, including those classified as long-term financial investments; assets
classified as current financial investments and other investments that are not considered as cash
equivalents. Transactions that relate to investment activities but do not require the use of cash and
cash equivalents (non-monetary transactions) are not recorded in the statement of cash flows.
Financial activities are the receipt or use of equity and borrowed capital. The receipt of funds as a
result of financial activities occurs due to the issue of shares of its own issue, the receipt of loans, and
disposal – when repaying loans, paying dividends on the repurchase of shares of its own issue.
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company's cash flow was as follows:
Indicators
Proceeds from the sale of products (goods, works, services)
for interest received under loan agreements and assignment
agreements (line 3000)
Proceeds from the return of advances (line 3020)

2020

2019

162,397
1,271

93,987
364

1

0

27,769

68,895

224,369
32

132,809
34,195

32

34,195

80,958

62,152

7,151

3,906

Spending deductions on social events (line 3110)

1,745

889

Expenditure of tax and fee obligations (line 3115)

2,908

1,549

Expenses for payment of income tax obligations (line 3116)
Expenses for payment of VAT obligations for consulting
services of non-residents (line 3117)

1,171

0

0

482

0

5,041

66

0

Income from interest on current account balances (line 3025)
Receipts from debtors of charges (fines, penalties)
- repayment of penalties under loan agreements made in cash
for late execution of settlements by individuals (line 3035)
Receipts of financial institutions from loan repayment –
repayment of the loan body under loan agreements with
individuals and legal entities (line 3055), including:
Other receipts (line 3095), including:
- from operations of sale and purchase of foreign
currency
Expenses for payment for goods, works and services (line
3100)
Labour costs (line 3105)

Expenses for payment of advances (line 3135)
Expenses for repayment of advances from borrowers'
overpayments (line 3140)
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Spending of financial institutions on providing loans to
clients, borrowers, individuals and legal entities (line 3155):
Other expenses (line 3190) including:
- for short-term repayable financial assistance to a legal
entity

330,262

240,858

1,390

36,006

0

589

652

801

13

39

- for NCFSU penalties

238

82

- for operations of sale and purchase of foreign currency

409

34,381

- for executive orders expenses

20

0

- for other representative expenses

58

114

(8,641)

(20,151)

Expenses for the purchase of non-current assets (line 3260)
Net movement of funds from investment activities (line
3295)

0

3,035

0

(3,035)

Income from equity (line 3300)

0

2,229

Income from receiving loans (line 3305)

43,323

141,739

-

from financial institutions of residents

26,251

115,410

-

from a non-resident’s company (Lithuania)

17,072

26,329

Payment of dividends (line 3355) including:

37,099

116,544

-

to financial institutions of residents

13,051

116,544

-

to a non-resident’s company (Lithuania)

24,048

0

4,378

27,424

(4,263)

4,238

4,216

60

464
417

(82)
4,216

- for cash and settlement services
- for the provision of an advance payment, a sub-report on
travel expenses

Net cash flow from operating activities (line 3195)

Net movement of funds from financial activities
(line 3395)
Net cash flow for the reporting period (line 3400)
Balance of funds at the beginning of the year (line 3405)
Impact of changes in exchange rates on the balance of funds
(line 3410)
Balance of funds at the end of the year (line 3415)
26. EQUITY
The equity movement ended December 31 2020 was as follows:
Indicators
Balance as of January 1, 2020
(line 4000)
Net profit (loss) for 2020 (line 4100)
Total changes in equity (line 4295)

Authorized
capital

Added
capital

Retained
earnings

Total

5,200
0
0

170
0
0

2,581
2,750
2,750

7,951
2,750
2,750

The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements

LLC "GOFINGO"
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(in UAH thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2020
(line 4300)

5,200

170

5,331

10,701

The amount of equity as of December 31, 2020 is UAH 10,701 thousand and meets the established
requirements of clause 1, Section XI of the "Regulations on the State Register of Financial
Institutions", approved by the order of the State Commission for the Regulation of Financial Services
Markets of Ukraine No. 41 dated August 28, 2003 (as amended by the order of the National
Commission for the State Regulation of Financial Services Markets No. 4368 of November 28, 2013).
27. DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON THE USE OF FAIR VALUE
The Company performs exclusively continuous fair value measurements of assets and liabilities, i.e.
such estimates as are required by IFRS 9 and IFRS 13 in the statement of financial position at the end
of the reporting period.
Classes of assets
and liabilities
measured at fair
value

Evaluation methods

Cash and cash
equivalents

Initial and subsequent valuation of
cash and cash equivalents is carried
out at fair value equal to their
nominal value
Initial and subsequent valuation of
accounts receivable is carried out at
fair value equal to the cost of
repayment, i.e. the amount of
expected contractual cash flows at
the valuation date
The initial valuation of capital
instruments is carried out at their
fair value, which is usually equal to
the price of the transaction during
which the asset was obtained.
Further valuation of capital
instruments is carried out at fair
value atand
thesubsequent
valuation date
Initial
assessment of
current liabilities is carried out at the
cost of repayment

Accounts
receivable

Capital
instruments

Current
liabilities

Evaluation
method
(market,
revenue,
cost)
Market

Output data

Official NBU exchange
rates

Revenue

Contract terms,
probability of repayment,
expected incoming cash
flows

Market,
cost

Official exchange rates of
trading organizers as of
the valuation date, in the
absence of a certain
exchange rate as of the
valuation date,
the last book value and
closing prices
Contract
terms,of the
exchange trading
day are
probability
of repayment,
used
expected
outgoing cash
flows

Cost

There were no changes in the valuation of debt securities and no redistribution between fair value
hierarchies.
The Company's management considers that these disclosures regarding the application of fair value
are sufficient, and does not consider that any significant information on the application of fair value
that may be useful for users of the financial statements remains outside the financial statements.
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28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Under IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures", parties are considered related if one party can control the
other party or have a significant influence on the other party's activities in the financial or operational
decision-making process. When considering each possible related party, special attention is paid to
the content of the relationship, not just its legal form.
Related parties may enter into agreements that would not be conducted between unrelated parties.
The prices and terms of such agreements may differ from the prices and terms of agreements between
unrelated parties.
The direct owner of the Company is a legal entity resident of Lithuania: CJSC "GO FINANCIAL
TECHNOLOGIES" (address: VILNIUS CITY SELF-GOVERNMENT, TERRITORY OF VILNIUS
CITY SELF-GOVERNMENT, LITHUANIA) – 100% of the Company's authorized capital, the
amount of which as of January 1, 2020 is UAH 5,200 thousand, of which UAH 5,200 thousand were
actually paid.
There were no transactions with the founder during 2020:
2020
2019
Indicators
Payment of contribution to the authorized capital
0
2,200
Other member’s payments (included to the added
capital)
Software purchase

0
0

29
2,647

Also, related parties in 2020 are defined as:
• Director of CJSC "GO FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES" – TADAS VAIKIULIS;
• Director of “GOFINGO” LLC – IVASHCHENKO IRYNA VIKTORIVNA;
• Chief Accountant of “GOFINGO” LLC – KALASHNIKOVA NATALIIA MYKOLAIVNA;
• founder of CJSC "GO FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES" – CJSC “DEBT
ADMINISTRATION CENTER”, LITHUANIA, VILNIUS CITY SELF-GOVERNMENT,
VILNIUS, 39-2 VITAUTO STREET, legal entity identification code – 302548347, who owns 100%
of CJSC "GO FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES".
• until November 11, 2020, ultimate beneficial owner – SHARUNAS YANCHAUSKAS,
personal number 38705311468, does not belong to public figures, 26A-14
NEMENCHYNES SQUARE, VILNIUS, LITHUANIA, who owned 100% of shares of
CJSC “DEBT ADMINISTRATION CENTER”.
• since November 12, 2020, a new ultimate beneficial owner – LAPENIS VITAUTAS YONAS,
personal number 37308100104, does not belong to public figures, 10-27 V. MIKOLAYCHEPUTINO STREET, VILNIUS, LITHUANIA, who has purchased 100% of shares of CJSC
"GO FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES".
Salaries to leading management personnel in 2020 amount to UAH 1,716 thousand.
29. LAWSUITS
In the course of its current activities, the Company from time to time has to act as a defendant in
claims received by the judicial authorities against the Company. Based on its own assessment, as well
as the recommendations of internal and external professional consultants, the Company's
management believes that the results of such court cases will not lead to significant losses for the
Company, and accordingly did not charge a reserve for such court cases.
The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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30. TAX LEGISLATION AND RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAXES
Currently, Ukraine has a number of laws and regulations regarding various taxes and fees levied by
both state and local authorities. Applicable taxes include income tax, value added tax, payroll charges,
and other taxes and fees. The laws governing these taxes change frequently, and their provisions are
often unclear or not developed. There are also not enough judicial precedents on these issues. There
are different views regarding the interpretation of legal norms among state ministries and
organizations (for example, the tax administration and its inspections), which causes general
uncertainty.
The correctness of drawing up tax returns, as well as other issues of compliance with the law, are
subject to verification and study by a number of regulatory authorities, which are legally authorized
to impose fines and penalties in significant amounts.
These factors determine the presence of tax risks in Ukraine that are significantly greater than in
countries with a more developed tax system. The management considers that the Company's activities
are carried out in full compliance with the current legislation regulating its activities and that the
Company has accrued all relevant taxes. In cases where there is uncertainty about the amount of taxes
payable, accruals are made based on the estimates of the Company's management based on an analysis
of the information available to it.
31. ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT, IMPACT OF INFLATION ON MONETARY
ITEMS
The Company's management personnel analysed the criteria that characterize the hyperinflation
indicator and are provided for in clause 3 of IAS 29, namely:
a) the majority of the population prefers to keep their valuables in the form of non-monetary
assets or in a relatively stable foreign currency. Amounts held in the national currency are
immediately invested to preserve purchasing power;
b) the majority of the population considers monetary amounts not in the national currency, but
in a relatively stable foreign currency. Prices can also be specified in this currency;
c) sales and purchases on deferred payment terms are made at prices that compensate for the
expected loss of purchasing power during the deferred payment period, even if this period is short;
d) interest rates, wages and prices are indexed according to the price index;
e) the cumulative inflation rate for a three-year period is approaching or exceeding 100%.
For Ukraine, as for most countries of the world, 2020 was a test of sustainability. The coronavirus
pandemic, without exaggeration, has left its mark on all spheres of public life. The fight against the
coronavirus pandemic in Ukraine took place in conditions of the need for rapid adaptation to the
threat of COVID-19, as well as the development of effective methods to counteract it. Some
decisions, such as a continuous lockdown in the spring, were not fully balanced, and some, such as
the introduction of adaptive quarantine, had a better impact on both countering the pandemic and
economic processes.
As a result of the coronavirus crisis, the Ukrainian economy, according to the NBU estimates, shrank
by 4.4% in 2020. The drop was significantly less than expected at the beginning of the pandemic
(6%). A comparison with other countries also shows that Ukraine has passed this global crisis quite
well.
It helped to cope with the consequences of the pandemic faster:
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- first, the state of the economy is quite strong due to the reforms of previous years. In particular,
due to the cleaning up of the banking system, the transition to a flexible exchange rate formation
regime in the foreign exchange market and the effective policy of the National Bank to curb inflation.
This made it possible to avoid another banking and currency crisis, as well as a surge in price growth;
- secondly, the stability of Ukrainian exports. The main goods that Ukraine sells abroad
remained in demand. Food sold well even during the pandemic. In addition, global food prices
remained quite high. Therefore, the agricultural sector, which occupies a significant share in the
Ukrainian economy, passed the crisis quite confidently. At the same time, large-scale infrastructure
projects in other countries, primarily in China, provided revenues to Ukrainian metallurgists.
Traditionally, the services of the Ukrainian IT sector also sold well. However, imports declined
significantly due to cheaper energy resources, falling demand for non-essential goods, and curtailing
international tourism;
- third, anti-crisis measures of the government, in particular, programs to support businesses
and the population. This concerns, in particular, additional payments to doctors at the forefront of the
fight against coronavirus, citizens who lost their jobs due to the pandemic, and affected enterprises.
Infrastructure projects in the field of road construction also had a positive impact on the economic
recovery;
- fourth, the National Bank's incentive policy. In response to the crisis, the NBU has created
conditions for loans to businesses and households to become more affordable. To this end, the NBU
significantly relaxed monetary policy, namely, reduced the discount rate to a record level of 6%. In
addition, banks were able to borrow funds from the NBU at this rate for a long time. Some
requirements for banks have also been relaxed to focus more on supporting the economy during the
crisis. As a result, banks began to lend more actively and offer borrowers better terms.
Finally, the support of Ukraine by international partners – the IMF, the World Bank, and the EU –
was important. The funds received from them under various programs were used to overcome the
consequences of the pandemic and revive economic activity. As a result, the economy began to
recover quite quickly – from the third quarter of 2020, and in 2021 it will almost catch up with losses
from the pandemic.
The National Bank has revised up its forecast for inflation growth in 2021 from 6.5% to 7%. The
acceleration of inflation in the first half of the year will be driven by strong consumer demand, higher
energy prices and a worse crop harvest last year. In addition, business production costs will increase,
in particular for labour remuneration. The growth rate of administratively regulated prices will remain
high due to higher excise taxes on tobacco products and higher electricity prices.
In the second half of the year, the impact of pro-inflationary factors will weaken, which will reverse
inflationary dynamics. Due to the increase in supply due to better harvests, food inflation will slow
down, and at the end of the year the effect of a low comparison base for individual goods will dry up.
The National Bank's monetary policy will also be aimed at easing fundamental inflationary pressures
from worsening expectations and sustained consumer demand. As a result, core inflation at the end
of 2021 will be 5.9%, and overall inflation will return to the target range in the first half of next year.
In 2022-2023, inflation will be close to the medium-term target of 5%.
According to the National Bank's forecasts, in 2021 the economy will almost catch up with losses
from the coronavirus crisis – Ukraine's GDP will grow by 4.2%. The main driver will remain stable
domestic demand, due to a further increase in real incomes of citizens. Reducing uncertainty with the
development of the pandemic will help restore investment activity.
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In the medium term, the Ukrainian economy will grow at about 4%. This will be facilitated by an
increase in real incomes of the population, an increase in investment, high external demand and an
increase in credit activity.
To support the population and accelerate economic recovery, the government will maintain a
significant level of budget deficit (4.5% of GDP) this year. However, the need for fiscal incentives
will gradually decrease, as the economy will return to sustainable growth. The deficit is expected to
be reduced to 3% of GDP in 2022. Public and state-guaranteed debt after growing to 62% of GDP in
2020 will continue to be reduced by 2-3 percentage points annually.
In 2021, the IMF is expected to receive funds under the current standby program, as well as related
funding from the EU, the World Bank and other international partners. These funds will make it
possible to finance a significant part of budget needs in 2021. Cooperation with the IMF remains an
important quality mark for foreign investors as well. It will significantly simplify access and reduce
the cost of planned government involvement in foreign markets. Due to the support of the IMF and
other partners, Ukraine will be able to maintain international reserves at the level of about USD 30
billion despite significant amounts of external debt repayments.
Vaccination worldwide reduces the risk of repeated lockdowns. However, given the gradual nature
of this process, as well as the emergence of new strains of the virus, there is still the possibility of
local forms of quarantine, which will have negative consequences for economic activity. At the same
time, ultra-soft monetary conditions in the world and optimism about vaccination have already
significantly revived the interest of foreign investors in emerging markets, including Ukraine.
Significant capital inflows can ease inflationary pressures through the exchange rate channel.
During 2020, the NBU maintained a stimulating monetary policy. The key discount rate remained at
6%, below its neutral level. In the context of low inflation, this contributed to a faster economic
recovery from the consequences of the coronavirus crisis. Weighted average UAH rates on bank loans
and deposits continued to decline.
After analyzing other criteria, the Company believes that according to the indicators given in
subclauses c) and d) of clause C of IAS 29, the economic situation in Ukraine does not correspond to
the situation characterized by hyperinflation.
Taking into account that according to IAS 29, the application of the provisions of the standard and
the recalculation of financial reporting indicators taking into account the possible impact of
hyperinflationary processes is a matter of judgment of management personnel, the Company decided
not to recalculate the financial statements for 2020.
32. FURTHER EVENTS
In accordance with the principles set out in IAS 10 for events after the balance sheet date, there are
no events that require an adjustment to the Company's assets and liabilities.
According to the Company's management, there were no significant events that may affect the state
of information disclosed in the financial statements for 2020 after the reporting date.
Event
Making a decision on the Company's reorganization
Announcement of a termination plan
Announcement of a significant restructuring or the beginning of its implementation
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Substantial acquisitions of assets, classification of assets as held for sale, other
disposal of assets or expropriation of significant assets by the government
Destruction (loss) of the Company's assets as a result of a fire, accident, natural
disaster or other emergency
Abnormally large changes after the balance sheet date in asset prices or foreign
exchange rates
Adoption of legislative acts that affect the Company's activities (NBU rate)
Acceptance of significant obligations or unforeseen obligations, for example, due to
the provision of significant guarantees
The beginning of a major trial that arose solely as a result of events that occurred
after the balance sheet date
Dividends for the reporting period declared by the Company after the balance sheet
date
Conclusion
of contracts for significant capital and financial investments
Declaring the Company's debtor bankrupt whose debt was previously recognized as
doubtful
Revaluation of assets after the reporting date, which indicates a steady decline in
their value determined at the balance sheet date
Sale of inventory, which indicates that the valuation of their net realizable value at
the balance sheet date is unjustified

No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No

33. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS
Financial risk factors
In the course of its activities, the Company is subject to various financial risks. The Company pays
special attention to the unpredictability of financial markets and aims to minimize their negative
consequences for the Company's performance. In particular, to limit the market risk associated with
unfavourable changes in the market value of financial instruments due to price fluctuations in
segments of the financial market that are sensitive to changes in interest rates, the Company closely
analyses financial assets before purchasing them and monitors further information, taking into
account existing regulatory restrictions on investment directions for the financial company, current
and forecast prices and interest rates, the level of liquidity, and diversification of the investment
portfolio.
The Company has a risk of not receiving funds from repayment of accounts receivable that have been
formed with counterparties, in particular individuals who have been issued short-term loans.
The key for the Company as a financial company is operational risk, which includes risks associated
with personnel, imperfect operation of information systems and communication tools, as well as legal
risk. To minimize these risks, the following measures are taken:
• staff training, advanced training, end-to-end automation of business processes;
• use of modern equipment and software, regular modification of the functionality of the electronic
trading system;
• use of electronic document management and reliable information protection;
• monitoring of existing and potential changes in the legislation of Ukraine to bring the rules of
the stock exchange, other internal documents, contractual relations in line with such changes,
rule-making activities, etc.
Capital management
The Company considers borrowed funds and equity as the main sources of formation of financial
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resources. The objectives of capital management are to ensure the ability of the Company to continue
to function as a permanent enterprise to generate profit, as well as to ensure financing of operational
needs, capital investments and the Company's development strategy. The Company's capital
management policy is aimed at ensuring and maintaining its optimal structure to reduce the total cost
of raising capital, as well as maintain the confidence of investors, creditors and market members and
ensure the future development of its business.
Director
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Chief Accountant
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